
OHIO HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY

OHIO HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

2014 AUDITED 
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS





2014 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

888.362.6432
OHIO HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

I .  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

I I .  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . 20
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

I I I .  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28

Supplementary Information

IV. SINGLE FAMILY MORTGAGE REVENUE PROGRAM

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . 84
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 98

V. GENERAL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 128
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . 132
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 134

VI. FEDERAL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 140
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION  . . . . . . . . . . . . 146
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150

VII.  FEDERAL PROGRAMS

FEDERAL AWARDS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 157
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 158

VIII .  COMPLIANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 161
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 165



OHIO HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

4

www.ohiohome.org
OHIO HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY

This page was intentionally left blank



2014 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5

888.362.6432
OHIO HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
Ohio Housing Finance Agency 
57 East Main Street  
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
To the Board of Directors: 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, 
General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio (OHFA), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
OHFA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing, and maintaining 
internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the Comptroller 
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and perform the 
audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures selected 
depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant to OHFA’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the 
extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of OHFA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of their 
significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.   
 
Opinion
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio 
Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to include 
Management’s discussion and analysis, listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, consisting of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, to the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not opine or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to opine or provide any other assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted to opine on OHFA’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The combining financial statements present additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards also presents additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and is 
also not a required part of the financial statements.

The statements and schedule are management’s responsibility, and derive from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected these statements and 
the schedule to the auditing procedures we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling statements and the schedule directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, these statements and the schedule are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 24, 2014, 
on our consideration of OHFA’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. That report describes the scope 
of our internal control testing over financial reporting and compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering OHFA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KENNEDY COTTRELL RICHARDS LLC

Columbus, Ohio
September 24, 2014
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis     
June 30, 2014
Unaudited

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of the Ohio Housing Finance Agency’s (OHFA) financial performance 
provides an overview of OHFA’s financial activities for the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2014 compared to June 
30, 2013. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Independent Auditor’s Report, financial statements 
and accompanying Notes. Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the information provided in the financial statements. 

This information is being presented to provide additional information regarding the activities of OHFA and to meet 
certain disclosure requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments and 
Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local 
Governments: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34.   

OHFA is a self-supporting, public purpose financial entity and follows enterprise fund reporting. The financial 
statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, 
wherein revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Enterprise fund 
statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about OHFA’s activities.  

The selected financial information presented was derived from OHFA’s financial statements audited by the firm of 
Kennedy Cottrell Richards LLC for FY 2014 and FY 2013. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements include the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.  

The Statement of Net Position provides information about the financial position of OHFA at a specific date.  Individually 
listed are the amounts of financial and capital resources (assets), consumption of net assets that is applicable to 
a future reporting period (deferred outflows of resources), the obligations to creditors (liabilities), acquisition of 
net assets that is applicable to a future reporting period (deferred inflows of resources), and net position.  The 
organization of the statement separates assets and liabilities into current and non-current balances.  The statement 
shows the totals of assets, deferred inflows of resources, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and net position. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position lists revenues, expenses, and the resulting 
change in net position over the reporting period. 

The Statement of Cash Flows lists OHFA’s cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from 
operating, investing, and financing activities during the reporting period. This statement reflects changes in the 
Statement of Net Position between two dates and demonstrates how OHFA has generated and disbursed cash 
within the reporting period.

The financial statements present the activities of OHFA’s Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund (Single-
Family Program), the General Fund, and Federal Program Fund.  See Note 1 for a complete description of each of 
these funds.

Note: Year-over-year changes discussed throughout the MD&A are not inclusive of all lesser contributing factors and 
therefore may not tie to the dollar amounts provided in the explanations.
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Financial Highlights

The following is a comparative analysis between the years ended June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013.  The information 
represents significant line items from OHFA’s financial statements. 

Total net position as of June 30, 2014 was $583.7 million, an increase of $11.6 million or 2.0% over the total 
net position of $572.0 million at June 30, 2013. This increase was due to an increase in current year operating 
revenues over expenses of $11.6 million.

As a result of this year’s operations, OHFA’s net income was $11.6 million, an increase of $110.0 million from a 
net loss of $98.5 million reported in the prior fiscal year. This increase is primarily attributed to a year-over-year 
improvement in the fair value of investments and MBS of $110.9 million partially offset by an aggregate year-over-
year decrease in operating revenues over expenses of $0.9 million for the Single-Family Program, General Fund, 
and Federal Program Fund. Changes in operating revenues and expenses are further explained in the Results of 
Operations and Discussion of Net Income Change sections that follow later in this MD&A.

Other Highlights:

• Cash increased $25.3 million mostly as a result of deposits and fees collected in the Housing Development 
Fund and Housing Tax Credit Program accounts in the General Fund [$12.8 million] as well as loan payments 
received in the Federal Program Fund for the Tax Credit Assistance Program (TCAP) [$11.5 million]. 

Cash 133,285,374$         108,027,489$         25,257,885$             23.4%

Investments, at fair value 277,029,396           366,812,674           (89,783,278)             -24.5%

Mortgage-backed securities, at fair value 1,661,519,404        2,060,162,996        (398,643,592)           -19.4%

Loans receivable 251,369,039           281,303,985           (29,934,946)             -10.6%

Prepaid insurance and other 723,381                  666,980                  56,401                      8.5%

Capital assets 522,085                  555,463                  (33,378)                    -6.0%

Total assets 2,344,068,050        2,840,035,955        (495,967,905)           -17.5%

Deferred outflows of resources 56,127,444             78,563,953             (22,436,509)             -28.6%

Bonds payable 1,619,449,907        2,128,624,995        (509,175,088)           -23.9%

Current l iabil ities 81,348,246             93,518,277             (12,170,031)             -13.0%

Non-current l iabil ities 1,735,178,147        2,253,039,805        (517,861,658)           -23.0%

Total liabilities 1,816,526,393        2,346,558,082        (530,031,689)           -22.6%

Net position, restricted 427,644,523           432,737,259           (5,092,736)               -1.2%

Net position, unrestricted 155,502,493           138,749,104           16,753,389               12.1%

Total net position 583,669,101           572,041,826           11,627,275               2.0%

Change in fair value of investments and 
mortgage-backed securities (GASB 31) 40,777                    (110,935,598)          110,976,375             100.0%
Operating revenue 149,431,739           57,944,839             91,486,900               157.9%

Operating expenses 137,804,464           156,396,405           (18,591,941)             -11.9%

Net income (loss) 11,627,275             (98,451,566)            110,078,841             111.8%

As of                     
June 30, 2014

As of                     
June 30, 2013

Dollar                     
Change

Percentage  
Change
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• Investments, at fair value decreased $89.8 million primarily due to liquidating a portion of OHFA’s investments 
in order to purchase MBS and making scheduled debt payments in the Single-Family Program. These decreases 
in investments were partially offset by proceeds from the sale of MBS in series 2005 A&B [$45.8 million] and 
principal payments received on MBS. 

• MBS, at fair value decreased $398.6 million, significantly due to sales of MBS in the Single-Family Program of 
approximately $656.0 million, net of MBS purchases of approximately $257.3 million.

• Loans receivable decreased by $29.9 million largely as a result of fewer General Fund loans originated in 
the Housing Development Fund [$24.3 million]  as well as lower Federal Program Fund loans resulting from 
increased principal repayments in the TCAP [$11.3 million] partially offset by additional loans made  in the 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) [$3.5 million] and Down Payment Assistance Product loans [$1.1 
million] financed in the To-Be-Announced market, the latter of which is described in Note 1 .

• Total assets decreased by $496.0 million primarily due to decreases in investments and MBS at fair value and 
decreases in loans receivable. These decreases were partially offset by increases in cash received.

• Deferred outflow of resources decreased by $22.4 million due to improvements in fair values for interest rate 
swap contracts resulting from higher current year market variable-rate interest rates relative to fixed-rate 
payer interest rates and exercising notional calls on interest rate swap contracts.

• Bonds payable decreased $509.2 million. The decrease in bonds payable in the Single-Family Program 
consists of payments made, of approximately $484.3 million, to redeem existing bonds as well as a $20.7 
million increase for fair value in interest rate swap agreements and net changes of $4.1 million in deferred 
refunding costs. See Notes 8, 9, 10 and 11 for more information.

• Total liabilities decreased by $530.0 million, largely due to decreases in bonds payable of $509.2 million as 
well as lower bond interest payable of $4.7 million in the Single-Family Program due to reduced bond volume 
outstanding and lower bond interest rates. Decreased accounts payable of $17.1 million in the General Fund 
due to increased loan repayments to the Ohio Department of Commerce (Commerce) for Housing Development 
Fund loans funded by Commerce also contributed to decreases in total liabilities. 

• Total net position increased by $11.6 million, primarily due to current year operating revenues over expenses 
of $11.6 million. 

• The current year’s operating revenues over expenses of $11.6 million (which excludes fair value changes in 
investments and MBS) includes net income in the Single-Family Program of $8.7 million, in the General Fund 
of $0.6 million, and in the Federal Program Fund of $2.3 million. Please note that net income as immediately 
stated in this paragraph, for the Single-Family Program and the General Fund, exclude a one-time contribution 
of $15.0 million from the Single-Family Program to the General Fund for the Capital Funds to End Homelessness 
Initiative (CFEHI). Further details on operating results are provided in the section Discussion of Net Income 
Change reported later in this MD&A.    

• Operating revenues increased $91.5 million primarily due to $110.9 million favorable year-over-year changes 
in the fair value of investments and MBS, partially offset by  year-over-year realized loss of $18.2 million in the 
sale of MBS in the Single-Family Program, most of which were recorded in the prior year. 

• Operating expenses decreased $18.6 million mostly due to lower Interest expenses of $21.9 million in the 
current fiscal year from lower bonds payable outstanding in the Single-Family Program, lower General Fund 
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contributions [$4.0 million]to bond issues of due to reduced loan volume demand for funding associated costs 
in the Single-Family Program, and decreased Federal financial assistance programs expense of $5.8 million 
in the Federal Program Fund. These decreases were partially offset by an $11.0 million increase in Insurance 
and other expense comprised primarily of a $15.0 million contribution from the Single-Family Program to 
the General Fund for the CFEHI program, which payment was partially offset when netted with the prior year 
unfavorable one-time settlement of a $3.0 million payment to Commerce for the Housing Development Fund 
loan program of the General Fund. Other smaller increases in trustee and agency fees of $1.0 million, and 
general and administrative fees of $1.2 million, contributed to increased operating expenses. See the Results 
of Operations section in this MD&A for further explanations.  

Results of Operations

* General and administrative expenses are comprised of payroll and benefits, contracts, maintenance, rent or lease, and purchased services 

of the General Fund.

OHFA’s net income increased by $110.1 million primarily due to a $110.9 million year-over-year increase in fair 
value of investments and MBS and an aggregate decrease in operating revenues over expenses of $0.9 million 
for the Single-Family Program, General Fund, and Federal Program Fund. Please see Discussion of Net Income 
Change later in this MD&A for further details.

FY  2014 FY 2013 Dollar Change
Percentage 

Change
Operating Revenues:
     Loan interest income 4,061,056$        4,115,661$      (54,605)$           -1.3%
     Mortgage-backed securities interest income 80,538,877        107,166,295    (26,627,418)     -24.8%
     Investment income 3,959,663          (11,612,185)     15,571,848      -134.1%
     Realized gain (loss) on sale of on investment (356,041)            18,157,758      (18,513,799)     -102.0%
     Other mortgage income - net 37,707                (3,561,920)       3,599,627         -101.1%
     Federal financial assistance programs 9,437,400          19,801,883      (10,364,483)     -52.3%
     Other grant revenue 63,436                74,576              (11,140)             -14.9%
     HTF grant and loan revenue 16,389,651        16,313,666      75,985              0.5%
     Other income 35,259,213        18,424,703      16,834,510      91.4%
     Change in fair value of investments and mortgage-
     backed securities (GASB 31) 40,777                (110,935,598)   110,976,375    -100.0%
           Total Operating Revenues 149,431,739$   57,944,839$    91,486,900$    157.9%
Operating Expenses:
     Interest expense 63,983,309$     83,209,968$    (19,226,659)$   -23.1%
     Trustee expense and agency fees 9,970,603          8,953,444         1,017,159         11.4%
     OHFA contribution to bond issues 3,336,602          7,368,312         (4,031,710)       -54.7%
     General and administrative * 15,378,279        14,200,317      1,177,962         8.3%
     Federal financial assistance programs 7,368,067          13,172,571      (5,804,504)       -44.1%
     Other grant expense 63,436                74,576              (11,140)             -14.9%
     HTF grant and loan expense 16,389,651        16,313,666      75,985              0.5%
     Cost of issuance expense 141,906             2,914,694         (2,772,788)       -95.1%
     Insurance and other expense 21,172,611        10,188,857      10,983,754      107.8%
           Total Operating Expenses 137,804,464$   156,396,405$  (18,591,941)$   -11.9%
Net Income (Loss) 11,627,275$     (98,451,566)$   110,078,841$  111.8%

* General and administrative expenses are comprised of payroll and benefits, contracts, maintenance, rent or lease, and purchased 
services of the General Fund.



2014 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

888.362.6432
OHIO HOUSING
FINANCE AGENCY

Ohio Housing Finance Agency
Management’s Discussion and Analysis     
June 30, 2014
Unaudited

Declines in MBS’ interest income [$26.6 million] occurred due to a smaller portfolio of securities outstanding as a 
result of loan prepayments, regularly scheduled payments, as well as the sale of certain MBS in the current period.

Investment income improved by $15.6 million primarily due to prior year interest rate swap contract termination 
expenses [$16.1 million] in the Single-Family Program that were included in investment income in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 53.

Realized year-over-year loss on sale of investment of $18.5 million primarily as a result of prior year realized gain on 
sales of MBS of $18.1 million from various series in the Single-Family Program. 

Other mortgage income-net increased $3.6 million primarily due to prior year reimbursements of $3.6 million from 
the Series General Trust in the Single-Family Program to the General Fund for various program expenses. 

Federal financial assistance programs revenue decreased $10.4 million mostly due to fewer loans issued in the NSP 
[$5.4 million] as well as decreased loans made in the HOME program [$5.1 million]. 

Other income increased by $16.8 million largely due to a one-time Single-Family Program payment of $15.0 million 
to the General Fund for the CFEHI and increased Housing Development Assistance Payment (HDAP) administrator 
fees of $1.2 million in the General Fund. 

Interest expense declined $19.2 million primarily due to lower bonds payable outstanding and lower interest rate 
swap contract payment expense in the Single-Family Program. 

OHFA contribution to bond issues decreased $4.0 million due to reduced loan volume demand for funding associated 
costs in the Single-Family Program.

Federal financial assistance programs expense decreased $5.8 million mostly due to lower HOME expenses 
resulting from a decrease in program disbursements [$5.1 million] in the Federal Program Fund. 

Cost of issuance expense decreased by $2.7 million as no bonds were issued in FY 2014 in the Single-Family 
Program.

Insurance and other expense increased by $11.0 million largely due to a one-time $15.0 million contribution from 
the Single-Family Program to the General Fund for the CFEHI, which was partially offset when netted with the prior 
year $3.0 million payment to Commerce for the Housing Development Fund Program of the General Fund. 
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Discussion of Net Income Change

Federal
Single-Family General Program

FY 2014 and FY 2013 Program Fund Fund Total 
Net income (loss) FY 2014 (6,147,762)$           15,514,729$        2,260,308$          11,627,275$        

GASB 31 FY 2014 fair value adjustment (112,522)                71,745                 -                           (40,777)                
Net income (loss) FY 2014 without the

GASB 31 adjustment (6,260,284)$           15,586,474$        2,260,308$          11,586,498$        
     
Net income (loss) FY 2013 (97,460,957)$         (7,797,906)$         6,807,297$          (98,451,566)$       

GASB 31 FY 2013 fair value adjustment 110,650,726           284,872               -                           110,935,598        
Net income (loss) FY 2013 without the

GASB 31 adjustment 13,189,769$           (7,513,034)$         6,807,297$          12,484,032$        
     
Net income change without GASB 31 adjustment (19,450,053)$         23,099,508$        (4,546,989)$         (897,534)$            
     
Changes explained by:
(Decrease) in loan and mortgage-backed securities 
interest income

(26,666,959)$         (6,371)$                (8,693)$                (26,682,023)$       

Increase in investment income 15,547,236             2,929                   21,683                 15,571,848          
(Decrease) in realized gain on sale of investment (18,513,799)           -                           -                           (18,513,799)         
Increase in other mortgage income - net 3,599,627               -                           -                           3,599,627            
(Decrease) in Federal financial assistance programs 
income -                             -                           (10,364,483)         (10,364,483)         
Increase in administrative fees -                             1,144,478            -                           1,144,478            
Increase in service fees and other income -                             690,031               -                           690,031               
Increase in service fees and other income due to 
Single-Family Program contribution to the General 
Fund for CFEHI -                             15,000,000          -                           15,000,000          
Decrease in interest expense, excluding net swap 
expenses and bond amortization expense 18,012,994             -                           -                           18,012,994          
Decrease in interest expense due to net swap 
expenses 3,511,417               -                           -                           3,511,417            
(Increase) in bond amortization expense (2,297,753)             -                           -                           (2,297,753)           
Decrease in Federal financial assistance programs 
expense -                             -                           5,804,504            5,804,504            
Decrease in contribution to bond series -                             4,031,710            -                           4,031,710            
(Increase) in trustee expense and agency fee (1,003,569)             (13,589)                -                           (1,017,158)           
Decrease in insurance and other expense 587,964                  2,250,320            -                           2,838,284            

(Increase) in insurance and other expense due to 
Single-Family Program contribution to General Fund 
for CFEHI (15,000,000)           -                           -                           (15,000,000)         
Decrease in cost of issuance expense 2,772,789               -                           -                           2,772,789            
Other changes -                             -                           -                           -                           
Net income change without GASB 31 adjustment (19,450,053)$         23,099,508$        (4,546,989)$         (897,534)$            
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The Single-Family Program decrease in loan and MBS interest income of $26.7 million is mainly due to a smaller 
portfolio of MBS resulting from prepayments and regularly scheduled payments on mortgage loans in the current 
fiscal year in addition to the sale of certain MBS. Investment income increased $15.6 million primarily as a result of 
prior year interest rate swap contract termination expenses of $16.1 million in the Single-Family Program  that were 
included in investment income in accordance with GASB Statement No. 53. Realized gain on sale of investment 
decreased $18.5 million resulting mostly from higher volume of MBS sales in the prior period. Other mortgage 
income-net increased $3.6 million primarily due to prior year reimbursements from the Series General Trust in 
the Single-Family Program to the General Fund for various program contribution expenses. Bond interest expense, 
excluding net swap expenses and bond amortization expense, decreased $18.0 million primarily due to reduced 
bonds payable outstanding. The $3.5 million decrease in interest expense due to net swap expenses resulted 
from lower interest payments on notional amounts remaining for the interest rate swap contracts. Increased bond 
amortization expense of $2.3 million resulted from decreased current period amortization of bond premiums. 
Increased insurance and other expense of $15.0 million is due to the one-time contribution from the Single-Family 
Program to the General Fund for the CFEHI. Cost of issuance expense decreased by $2.8 million as no bonds were 
issued in the current period.

The General Fund $1.1 million increase in administrative fees is primarily due to administrative fees earned for 
the HDAP. Increased service fees and other income of $15.0 million are due to the contribution from the Single-
Family Program to the General Fund for the CFEHI. The $4.0 million decrease in contribution to bond series is 
due to reduced loan volume demand for funding associated costs in the Single-Family Program The $2.2 million 
decrease in insurance and other expense is mostly due to a prior period one-time $3.0 million settlement payment 
to Commerce, related to the Sogg vs. Zurz/Goodman class action suit, for the Housing Development Fund Program 
of the General Fund. This decrease in insurance and other expense was partially offset by $1.1 million increased 
general and administrative expenses in the current period. 

The Federal Program Fund decrease in net income of $4.5 million is mostly due to lower revenues recorded in the 
NSP [$5.4million] in the current period. 

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2014, OHFA had approximately $1,619.4 million of bonds outstanding in the Single-Family Program. 
This debt is secured by MBS issued by GNMA, Fannie Mae, and Freddie Mac.  

New Business

In the Single-Family Program, no bonds were issued because tax-exempt mortgage revenue bond market rates did 
not allow for structuring competitively priced mortgage loans. In lieu of the traditional method used to finance new 
residential mortgage loans through the issuance of mortgage revenue bonds, on October 1, 2013, OHFA began 
utilizing the To-Be-Announced (TBA) market to finance new mortgage loans. See Note 1 for additional information.  

See Notes 8, 9, 10, 11, and 14 for more detailed information on bonds held in the Single-Family Program.

Budget

OHFA is a self-supporting organization related to the State of Ohio and not a part of the primary government. The 
State of Ohio appropriates OHFA’s spending authority for payroll and benefits. On a fiscal year basis, OHFA’s Board 
approves its General Fund budget. See Note 1 for additional information.     
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Conclusion

The MD&A presented above is intended to provide additional information regarding the financing activities of 
OHFA and to meet the disclosure requirements of GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37.  Management believes that all 
requirements of these GASB Statements have been met as they apply to OHFA.  If you have questions about the 
report or need additional financial information, please contact the Chief Financial Officer, Ohio Housing Finance 
Agency, 57 E. Main Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215, or by telephone 614-644-7970.   
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NOTE 1 · AUTHORIZING LEGISLATION AND FUNDS
The Ohio Housing Finance Agency (OHFA) was originally created as an Agency within the Ohio Development Services 
Agency (DSA), formally known as Ohio Department of Development, by House Bill No. 1, effective January 20, 1983, 
Chapter 175 of the Ohio Revised Code implementing Section 14 of Article VIII of the Constitution of Ohio of 1852.  
On November 30, 2004, the Ohio General Assembly passed Am. Sub. H.B. 431, and on February 1, 2005, Am. 
Sub. H.B. 431 was signed into law by the Governor (the Act).  The Act, effective July 1, 2005, established OHFA as 
a body corporate and politic performing essential governmental functions of the state, as a separate entity from 
DSA.  On the effective date of the legislation, OHFA assumed the functions, powers, duties and obligations from DSA 
pertaining to OHFA.

OHFA’s mission includes, but is not limited to, assisting with the financing, refinancing, production, development 
and preservation of safe, decent and affordable housing for occupancy by low- and moderate-income persons; the 
provision of rental assistance and housing services for low- and moderate-income persons; allocating all state and 
federal funds in accordance with applicable state and federal laws, including Section 42 of the Internal Revenue 
Code; and promoting community development, economic stability and growth within Ohio.

Under the Act, the powers of OHFA are vested in its Board of 11 members, consisting of the Director of Ohio 
Department of Commerce (Commerce), or his or her designee, the Director of DSA, or his or her designee, and nine 
public members appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Ohio Senate, for six-year terms.  The 
Governor appoints the Chairperson of OHFA, and the members of the OHFA Board appoint a Vice Chairperson.

OHFA is required to prepare an annual plan to address the state’s housing needs; develop policies and program 
guidelines for the administration of its programs; prepare an annual financial report, including audited financial 
statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and appropriate 
accounting standards; and an annual report of all of its programs. OHFA holds its own moneys, which are not 
deemed to be funds of the State of Ohio or public moneys.  

OHFA is a related organization to the State of Ohio and not part of the primary government.  No accounts or funds 
of OHFA are included in the Ohio Comprehensive Annual Financial Report or the State of Ohio Single Audit Report. 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund 

The Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund (the Single-Family Program) accounts for proceeds of bond 
series issued under an open general indenture dated June 1994. In addition, OHFA was awarded funds as part of 
the New Issuance Bond Program (NIBP) that have been recorded in an open master indenture dated December 
2009. Beginning in September 2012, OHFA began issuing Tax Exempt Mortgage Participation Securities (TEMPS) 
and records the bond proceeds and equivalent securities in stand-alone indentures.  Under these programs, 
qualified loans are pooled by the loan servicer and purchased by the trustee as Government National Mortgage 
Association (GNMA) Securities, as Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) Certificates, or as Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) Securities and classified as mortgage-backed securities (MBS) on 
the financial statements.

In fiscal year 2014, OHFA began utilizing the To-Be-Announced (TBA) market for Single-Family homeownership 
financing. The TBA financing allows OHFA to provide competitively priced mortgage loans. Under the OHFA TBA 
model, originators issue OHFA loans, the loan servicer purchases and pools the loans into MBS pools, and OHFA 
purchases the MBS pools from the loan servicer and simultaneously sells the MBS pools to the security purchaser 
at a predetermined price. This results in funds to pay for the purchase of the MBS pools and the recognition of 
revenue. 
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The assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues and expenses reported 
in the Single-Family Program reflect the use of tax-exempt bond financing (see Note 9),  taxable bond financing (see 
Note 9), and TBA market financing.

General Fund

The General Fund receives fees for the administration of bond, loan, state and federal programs and certain 
earnings from the Single-Family Program, reported in the Bond Series Program and Escrow Funds. Operational 
and programmatic expenses of OHFA are paid with these fees. The Housing Development Fund (HDF) includes 
amounts borrowed as interest-free funds from the Commerce Division of Unclaimed Funds to fund loans to qualified 
housing sponsors to develop affordable housing. Commerce is repaid principal and a portion of the interest as loan 
payments are received. The Housing Development Assistance Program (HDAP) includes money provided by the 
Ohio Housing Trust Fund (HTF) to be used to provide loans and grants to housing communities for low-to moderate-
income tenants. Loan repayments are repaid to the HTF.  OHFA’s General Fund is separate and not related to the 
State of Ohio’s General Revenue Fund.

Federal Program Fund

Under annual contributions contracts among OHFA, the owners of rental housing properties, and the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), monthly Housing Assistance Payments (Section 8) are received from 
HUD and disbursed to the owners as rent subsidies. The HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) accounts 
for amounts allocated from the DSA Office of Community Development (OCD), a designated State administrator for 
HOME. OHFA utilizes the allocation to fund HDAP and the Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) 
Program. Amounts directed to HDAP are used to provide loans and grants to housing communities for low- to 
moderate-income tenants.  Loan repayments are collected by OHFA and returned to OCD and are used to provide 
future loans and grants.  Funds allocated to the CHDO program are awarded to community organizations as grants 
by OHFA. The Financial Adjustment Factor (FAF) funds are held by OHFA for allocation to eligible projects. The 
FAF funds are the result of savings generated by the refunding of bonds used for financing Multifamily Mortgage 
Revenue Bond Program Section 8 housing communities. The National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling Program 
(NFMC) and Making Home Affordable (MHA) Outreach and Intake Program are both funded by grants provided by 
NeighborWorks© America. These federal funds are used to provide homebuyer counseling to current homeowners. 
The Housing Counseling Program is funded by a grant provided by HUD and is used to provide homebuyer counseling 
for potential homeowners. The Tax Credit Assistance Program (TCAP) was funded by the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) and financed the construction or acquisition and rehabilitation of qualified low-income 
developments. The Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) utilized funds from HUD through allocations from 
DSA to address the abandoned and foreclosed homes crisis.
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NOTE 2 · SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as applied to government units. The Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting 
and financial reporting principles. OHFA utilizes the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting wherein revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. 

Under GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, OHFA is a related organization to the State of Ohio’s 
primary government as the Governor appoints the Board members and the state is not entitled to OHFA’s resources, 
nor obligated to finance OHFA’s deficits or to pay OHFA’s debts.    

Consistent with Section 2100 of the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards 
published by the GASB, Defining the Reporting Entity, this report includes all funds, activities and functions for 
which OHFA is financially accountable.

OHFA eliminated intra-Agency balances in the General Fund on the Supplemental Information using elimination 
entries that reduced fund accounts receivables and payables by $5,175,577.

GASB Statement No. 51, Intangible Assets, provides guidance for recordation of intangible assets. OHFA uses a time 
tracking system to gather staff time spent related to computer software development, both external and internal, 
implementation, and testing. Average compensation factors are applied to these hours; a corresponding entry is 
entered to reduce payroll expense and increase the cost basis of the intangible asset. This entry complies with the 
GASB 51 requirement. 

GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, provides accounting 
standards for derivatives. OHFA has identified its swap agreements as derivatives subject to GASB Statement No. 
53 which requires each derivative to be tested for effectiveness using one of four defined methods. If found to 
be effective, the change in fair market value is recorded as a deferred outflow or deferred inflow of resources, 
as appropriate, with a corresponding entry as part of bonds payable in the Statement of Net Position. If a swap 
agreement is found to be ineffective, the change in fair market value is recorded against investment income (see 
Note 10).

GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions. GASB 
Statement No. 64 provides additional guidance for the recordation of swap terminations.  OHFA did not have any 
swap terminations in the current fiscal year.  OHFA will continue to evaluate the implications of GASB 64 in future 
years.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 
30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting 
and financial reporting guidance, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, that is included 
in Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board 
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) 
Committee on Accounting Procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989.  GASB Statement No. 66, Technical 
Corrections – 2012 is also followed as it is an amendment to GASB Statement No. 62.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position, provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources. The statement also identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a balance 
sheet, amending the net asset reporting requirements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
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inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure of the balance sheet 
and by renaming that measure as net position. GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities, reclassifies as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources items that were previously 
reported as assets and liabilities. Statement No. 65 reclassifies losses on advanced or current debt refundings. This 
Statement also requires debt issuance costs to be expensed in the period incurred and assets received related to 
the purchase of loans to be recognized as income in the period the loans were purchased.  

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, became 
effective in fiscal year 2014. GASB 70 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for nonexchange 
financial guarantees.  In August 2010, OHFA guaranteed up to $469,000 for the repayment of principal and interest 
on the loans made by the Ohio Preservation Loan Fund, LLC, a legally separate entity, as outlined in the Restricted 
Account Agreement. The loan guarantee will terminate on the December 31, 2020. In the event, a borrower or 
borrowers default(s) on a loan(s) and the default is not cured within 90 days after any applicable cure period provided 
in the loan documents, OHFA will be required to make a payment for its pro rata portion up to the guaranteed 
amount. 

During fiscal year 2014, management reviewed GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans and 
determined it has no impact on the financial statements. 

Recently issued accounting pronouncements that will be effective in fiscal year 2015 include GASB Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and 
Disposals of Government Operations.  Management is reviewing these statements to determine the impact they 
may have on OHFA’s financial statements. 

The financial statements include summarized prior year comparative information. Such information does not include 
sufficient financial detail and disclosure to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such prior 
year summary information should be read in conjunction with OHFA’s financial statements for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2013, from which such summarized information was derived.

ASSETS
Cash

Cash consists of cash on hand, cash held by depository institutions and trustees (see Note 3). Cash in the Single-
Family Program (with exception of the Market Rate Program) and Federal Program Fund is restricted for use in those 
programs. Designated cash in the General Fund is restricted for specific use based on contractual obligations.

Cash and current investments, including the portions restricted for debt service, are considered to be cash 
equivalents, as defined in GASB Statement No. 9, for purposes of a Statement of Cash Flows. Current investments 
consist primarily of money market mutual funds, which can be liquidated at any time. 

Investments

The current investments within the Single-Family Program are generally restricted by the various bond resolutions 
to direct obligations of the U.S. government and its agencies or other instruments secured by such obligations.  The 
current investments reported in the Single-Family Program, along with current investments reported in the General 
Fund and Federal Program Fund, are primarily invested in money market mutual funds and securities of federal 
agencies or instrumentalities held by the trustees. Current investments within the General Fund that are not held 
by the trustee are invested in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR), which is administered by the Ohio 
Treasurer of State. These current investments are reported at fair value, which is the same as the cost for most 
current investments (see Notes 3 and 5).
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The non-current investments reported in the General Fund are primarily invested in securities of federal agencies or 
instrumentalities and are held by a trustee. These non-current investments are reported at fair value.

OHFA complies with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for 
External Investment Pools (see Note 5) and Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure (see Note 3).

Excess Revenue Accounts

The Excess Revenue accounts in the Single-Family Program receive money transferred from the individual Single-
Family Program series that qualifies as excess revenue under the Indentures.  The assets in the Excess Revenue 
accounts can be used to redeem bonds, originate or acquire mortgage-backed securities, pay extraordinary trustee 
fees or be transferred to the related Program Funds of the General Fund provided it does not adversely affect the 
rating category on the bonds.  The amount of investments in the Excess Revenue accounts was $108,170,787 on 
June 30, 2014.                                                 

Restricted Assets

Current investments in the Single-Family Program are restricted primarily for debt service. Other current investment 
account restrictions are for bond acquisition, bond revenue, bond proceeds, special funds, commitments, costs of 
issuance, capital reserves, mortgage reserves, mortgage prepayment, debt service reserves, and expenses. Cash 
and investments are restricted in all the funds of the Federal Program Fund and designated cash in the General Fund 
is restricted for contractual obligations.  OHFA does not use restricted investments to fund unrestricted program 
costs. Restricted investments used to fund current operations are classified as current assets.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

MBS reported in the Single-Family Program and the General Fund are pass-through securities of GNMA and Freddie 
Mac and certificates of Fannie Mae, all of which securitize qualified pools of loans or individual loans under the 
respective programs. They are reported at fair value that varies from the value of the securities and certificates if 
held to maturity (see Note 5).

Capital Assets

Office equipment is capitalized at cost in the General Fund and depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis 
throughout the estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost and amortized on the 
straight-line basis throughout the term of the building lease. OHFA capitalizes assets with an individual cost equal 
to or greater than $5,000 (see Note 7).

Intangible assets are reported in accordance with GASB Statement No. 51 which requires all expenditures associated 
with the research, development, and testing of internally generated intangible assets be included in the asset’s 
base cost. Routine maintenance and updates of intangible assets are expensed.

Bond Issue Costs

Costs relating to the issuance of bonds are expensed when incurred in accordance with GASB Statement No. 65.

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable/Accounts Payable

Activity in the intergovernmental accounts primarily consists of invoiced principal and interest amounts within the HDF 
Program’s sub-accounts. Loan payments are billed and received within one HDF sub-account then the corresponding 
receipts are transferred to other HDF sub-accounts based on the originating funding source. The related amounts 
offset each other and are eliminated in the supplemental financial statements. The intergovernmental accounts are 
recorded within the General Fund.
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Loan Loss Reserve

Historical losses and the current economic conditions are evaluated by OHFA management as they relate to certain 
loans in OHFA’s portfolio. OHFA records a monthly loan loss reserve based on the total outstanding principal and 
interest payments in excess of 90 days past due. This is to ensure that all loans of OHFA are presented fairly. 

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Current and non-current accounts payable and other includes general payables of each fund, the arbitrage rebate 
liability of the Single-Family Program, compensated absences, healthcare deficits and amounts owed to Commerce 
for interest-free loans used to fund development programs in the General Fund.

The amounts included in current and non-current accounts payable and other for healthcare deficit liabilities are 
estimated by OHFA and included as of June 30, 2014.

Debt Refunding

OHFA follows GASB Statement No. 23, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refunding of Debt Reported by 
Proprietary Activities. The Statement requires that gains and losses resulting from debt refunding be deferred 
and amortized over the shorter period of the remaining life of the new debt or the retired debt using the bonds 
outstanding method (see Note 11).   

Arbitrage Liability

OHFA records rebatable arbitrage as a reduction in investment income (see Note 8).

Deposits Held

Deposits held in the General Fund primarily include general program funds remitted by nonprofits to be used for a 
re-entry rental subsidy program.

Deposits held in the Federal Program Fund include amounts received for MHA Outreach and Intake and Housing 
Counseling which will be used by approved counseling agencies to offset program related expenses. 

Unearned Revenue

Yield reductions resulting from Intercreditor Agreements for interest rate strips on previously refunded series are 
recorded as an investment and unearned revenue in the General Trust of the Single-Family Program until needed 
for a new issue.  The amount of unearned revenue from yield reductions available at June 30, 2014 was $27,208.

Unearned revenue in the 2005E&F Single-Family Bond Series is the result of a swap optionality sale. The total 
amount received from the sale was $1,752,000 and is being amortized over the remaining life of the original swap.  
In fiscal year 2014 the unamortized portion of the swap optionality was $1,359,886.

The total unearned revenue in the General Fund is primarily housing tax credit reservation and compliance monitoring 
fees. The accounting of these fees reflects the recording of income when the fees are earned by deferring the 
recognition of the revenue amount in the Bond Depository and Housing Tax Credit Program funds of the General 
Fund.  The total amount of unearned revenue in the General Fund at June 30, 2014 was $21,696,129.

Compensated Absences

The State of Ohio, which governs employee leave benefits and policies, pays compensation to separated employees 
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for leave balances accumulated during the employee’s term of service. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, 
Accounting for Compensated Absences, OHFA calculates and records the current and non-current compensated 
absence liability (see Note 8). 

Pension and Employee Benefits

OHFA complies with GASB Technical Bulletin No. 2004-2, Recognition of Pension and Other Post-employment 
Benefit Expenditures/Expense and Liabilities by Cost-Sharing Employers, in the recognition of expense and liabilities 
for pensions and post-employment benefits and has adopted GASB Statement No. 45 Accounting and Financial 
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (see Notes 12 and 13).

OPERATIONS AND OTHER
Operating Revenues

OHFA considers operating revenues to include interest earned on investments in the General Fund. The interest 
earned on the General Fund investments is included in operations for purposes of net income and the direct method 
cash flow statement.

Realized Gain on Sale of Investment 

When investments are sold, all realized gains are recorded and reported as such. In addition, GASB Statement 
No. 53, paragraph 23, states that when hedge accounting is terminated, the balance in the deferred outflows of 
resources (the fair market value of the associated swap) is to be reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net Position within the investment revenue classification. The investment revenue classification is 
represented by the Interest and Investment Income section of OHFA’s Financial Statements.

Other Mortgage Income – Net 

Other mortgage income – net reported in the Single-Family Program includes Agency contributions offset by down 
payment assistance grants, premiums (or inducements paid to lenders) and other items.  The total amount of other 
mortgage income-net at June 30, 2014 was $37,707.

Federal Financial Assistance Programs

FAF records revenues at the time grant agreements are executed while expenses/loans receivable are recorded 
when funds are disbursed to a project. TCAP and some NSP activities record revenues as earned at the time loans 
are disbursed, no expenses are recorded; instead a loans receivable is recorded.  

Servicer Release Fee

The net servicer release fees paid by the servicer are included in Service fees and other revenues in the Bond Series 
Program Funds of the General Fund. 

OHFA Contributions to New Bond Issues 

Amounts reported on the OHFA contribution to bond issues line include contributions made by OHFA’s General Fund 
for various uses within new Single-Family Program bond issues. 

HTF Grant and Loan Revenue and Expense

In compliance with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other 
Financial Assistance, the HTF grant and loan revenue or expense amounts offset each other and primarily represent 
the draws paid to HDAP projects funded by HTF.
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Interest Expense 

OHFA records bond interest and amortized bond discounts and premiums in the Interest expense line item. 

A summary for fiscal year 2014 follows:

Interest Rate Swaps 

OHFA has entered into interest rate swap agreements to reduce its exposure to changes in variable interest rates 
on bonds financing fixed-rate mortgages.  OHFA has adopted GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Derivative Instruments (see Note 10) and GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application 
of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions.

Non-exchange Transactions

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions, 
OHFA recognizes revenue and expense and assets and liabilities at the time allowable costs are submitted. 

Building Lease

OHFA occupies a leased office and the rent is charged to the Rent or lease expense line item in the Operating Funds 
of the General Fund (see Note 14).

Pass-Through Grants

OHFA complies with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other 
Financial Assistance. GASB Statement No. 24 requires that all cash pass-through grants received by a governmental 
entity be reported in its financial statements.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates used in the preparation 
of the financial statements are based on various factors, including the current interest rate environment, and can 
significantly affect OHFA’s net interest income.

NOTE 3 · DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits

Deposits include OHFA’s bank deposits in the form of cash. The book and bank balance of OHFA’s deposits at 
June 30, 2014 is $133,285,374. Of the bank balance, $49,949,050 is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation, and $2,251,775 is with the Ohio Treasurer of State, not subject to the classification of custodial credit 
risk. The remainder of $81,084,549, though subject to custodial credit risk, is collateralized at not less than 105%.

Investments 

The Investment Policy adopted by the OHFA Board provides investment guidance for the unrestricted investments 
in the General Fund. The objective of the Investment Policy is to maintain safety and liquidity with appropriate yield 
and generally limits the investments to United States Treasury or Agency obligations, certificates of deposits, money 
market funds, STAR Ohio funds or investment grade commercial paper notes. The credit quality of the investments 
are generally rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s) and interest rate risk is limited due to the generally 
short-term nature of the investments. The investments are made in consideration with short and intermediate-term 
cash requirements. OHFA Board approval is required for investments that do not comply with the Investment Policy. 

The Trust Indentures provide policy for the restricted investments within the Single-Family Program. The documents 
specify whether the financing of the mortgage loans will be by the purchase of MBS and also identifies the investment 
providers for which liquid account balances are to be invested. The investment agreements specify a minimum 
credit rating for the investment providers of at least A1/A by Moody’s/Standard & Poor’s (S&P). If the investment 
provider’s credit rating falls below the minimum allowable specified in the individual investment agreement, OHFA 
may have the option to withdraw the funds and terminate the investment agreement. The rates of interest on 
investments are established in the documents and are calculated to provide sufficient present value earnings to 
service the outstanding bonds through maturity. The MBS are subject to interest rate risks due to prepayments 
before maturities and the fair value of the securities vary with the change in market interest rates.  

The Ohio Treasurer of State is the investment administrator of STAR Ohio as authorized under Section 135.45 
of the Ohio Revised Code. Information can be obtained by accessing the Ohio Treasurer of State’s website at:                      
www.ohiotreasurer.org.

http://www.ohiotreasurer.org
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Credit Risk: The risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill its obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk: The risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, OHFA will not be 
able to recover deposits, the value of investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. 

Interest Rate Risk: The risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a 
deposit. Trust indentures require OHFA to match its Single-Family Program investments with anticipated cash flow 
requirements for bond debt service.     

Concentration of Credit Risk:  The risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of OHFA’s investment in a single issuer. 
OHFA places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. More than 5% of OHFA’s investment portfolio is 
invested with Fannie Mae, $433,882,624 (22.2%) as mortgage-backed securities.  

NOTE 4 · CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS
To provide lower-cost debt financing for the acquisition, construction, and substantial rehabilitation of multifamily 
housing for low- and moderate-income residents, to date OHFA has issued $758,385,260 of tax-exempt mortgage 
revenue bonds. The bonds issued are limited obligations of OHFA, payable only out of the trust estate specifically 
pledged to each bond issue.  As of June 30, 2014, the total aggregate amount of bonds outstanding is $255,581,364.  
No recourse may be taken against any properties, funds, or assets of OHFA for the payment of any amounts owed 
with respect to these bonds.  Bond owners will have no right to compel the payment of any amount owed with 
respect to these bonds out of any other revenues, funds or assets of OHFA or the State of Ohio, other than the 
security pledged to each bond issue.  
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NOTE 5 · FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS 
OHFA complies with GASB Statement No. 31 which requires that investments be reported at fair value as of the 
Statement of Net Position date and that changes in the fair value during the reporting period be reported as part 
of operating revenue. In applying GASB Statement No. 31, OHFA determined that it held four classifications of 
investments.

Interest-Earning Investment Contracts - Under the Single-Family Program, certain current investments are invested 
in GICs. These contracts are not marketable, non-participating, and carried at cost and no change in fair value is 
reported.

External Investment Pools - Certain current investments held in the General Fund are invested in the STAR Ohio 
Fund at the Ohio Treasurer of State. The net assets of the pool are equivalent to $1 per share of the pool, and 
therefore cost is equal to fair value and no change in fair value is reported. The STAR Ohio Fund issues a separate 
annual report that may be obtained from the Ohio Treasurer of State’s website at: www.ohiotreasurer.org.

Open-End Mutual Funds - Certain current investments are held by the trustees in mutual funds.  Those funds have 
reported that the net assets are equal to $1 per share and therefore cost is equal to fair value. No change in fair 
value is reported for these investments.

Debt Securities - Within the Single-Family Program and the General Fund, qualified mortgage loans are securitized 
by GNMA, Fannie Mae, and Freddie Mac. The resulting securities are considered by GASB Statement No. 31 to 
be investments and must be carried at fair value. On June 30, 2014, the trustees have provided a market price 
as reported by recognized pricing firms. Certain other money is invested in federal obligations, which were also 
reported at fair value by the trustee. Investments with less than one year to maturity at purchase are carried at 
amortized cost. The net increase in fair value of $40,777 is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position.

One purpose of OHFA is to make low cost loans which, when securitized in GNMA and Freddie Mac securities or 
Fannie Mae certificates, generally provide a lower-than-market coupon rate and would sell at a loss in the market. 
The unpredictability of cash flows resulting from mortgage prepayments creates fluctuations during the life of the 
security that may or may not be reflected in the market as a whole. Unrealized gains or losses will be reversed as 
the security reaches par value at maturity. 
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Mortgage-backed securities held at June 30, 2014, valued at fair value and principal outstanding, are as follows:
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NOTE 6 · LOANS RECEIVABLE
Loans receivable outstanding in the General and Federal Program Funds at June 30, 2014 are as follows: 

NOTE 7 · CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity in the General Fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 was as follows:

Depreciation of equipment and amortization of leasehold improvements are expensed in the General Fund.  
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NOTE 8 · NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Changes in non-current liabilities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 are as follows:

Debt service on bonds payable at June 30, 2014 is as follows:

See related Notes 9, 10, 11 and 14.

Interest calculations were based on rates as of June 30, 2014. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments 
and net swap payments will vary (see Note 10).  
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NOTE 9 · BONDS PAYABLE
Bonds issued by OHFA consist of fully registered bonds with or without coupons. The variable rate bonds are indexed 
to a percent of the base lending rate of a designated bank or a specified index, or are set by the remarketing agent. 
The net proceeds of the bonds issued were primarily used to purchase eligible residential mortgage loans or MBS. 
The bond indentures also contain various covenants which management believes all bonds are in compliance with 
at June 30, 2014.

Single Family program bonds outstanding at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

The difference between the Principal Amount and the Carrying Amount, $66,449,605, is the amount of unamortized 
premium or discount and swap fair market value, which can be found in Note 8.
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NOTE 10 · INTEREST RATE SWAPS
Objective:  As a means of hedging the interest rate risk of its variable rate bonds, OHFA entered into interest rate 
swap agreements with various counterparties in connection with the 2003C, 2004B, 2004D, 2004F, 2005B1, 
2005B2, 2005D, 2005F, 2006F, 2006I, 2006J, 2006N, 2007B, 2007E, 2008B, 2008E, 2008H, and 2008I bond 
issues. The swaps serve as hedging tools, which allow OHFA to reduce its exposure to changes in variable interest 
rates on bonds financing fixed-rate mortgages and effectively changes OHFA’s interest rate on the bonds to a 
synthetic fixed-rate. Under the swap agreements, OHFA has agreed to make payments to the counterparties based 
on a fixed-rate of interest, and the counterparties have agreed to make payments to OHFA based on a floating rate 
of interest.  These hedge transactions become general obligations of OHFA in the event the Single-Family General 
Indenture cannot fulfill requirements of the swap agreements (see Note 14). The variable rate on the bonds, which 
is determined based on the rate the remarketing agents deem necessary to maintain a par price on the bonds, 
approximates the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) municipal swap index plus 0.05% 
for tax-exempt bonds on average over the past six years, or London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) index plus 0.22% 
for taxable bonds on average over approximately the last three years. As of June 30, 2014, $610,445,000 of the 
Single-Family Program’s outstanding bond principal included associated interest rate swap agreements with an 
aggregate notional amount of $655,550,000.  

Terms:  The notional amounts and basic terms of the swap agreements associated with variable rate bonds at June 
30, 2014 are presented.  The term of each swap agreement provides for reductions in the notional amounts to 
coincide with expected redemptions of outstanding amounts of the associated bonds. Please note that the notional 
amount differs from the outstanding principal by $45,105,000 as summarized below.

Fair Value: If a swap agreement has a negative fair value and is terminated, OHFA would be obligated to pay the 
counterparty the fair value amount as of the termination date; a positive fair value would result in an obligation of 
the counterparty. As of June 30, 2014, all swap agreements had a negative fair value, as reported on the following 
schedule.  Since the coupons on OHFA’s variable rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have 
a corresponding fair value change.  The fair value was estimated using the counterparties’ proprietary valuation 
models on the basis of estimated mid-market quotation levels.   The valuation models typically calculate the future 
net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming that the current forward rates implied by the yield curve 
correctly anticipate future settings for either LIBOR or SIFMA.  These payments are then discounted using the future 
settings implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net 
settlement of the swap.  
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OHFA has the following cash flow pay-fixed interest rate swaps:

Counterparties at June 30, 2014:

(1) Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine 
Derivative Products, L.P. (Baa1/A-)

(2) Rabobank International, Utrecht 
(NR/AA-)

(3) SMBC Derivative Products Limited 
(Aa1/AA)

(4) Wells Fargo Bank, National 
Association (Aa3/AA-)

(5) The Bank of New York Mellon 
(Aa2/AA-)

Remarketing agents as of June 30, 2014:

(6) Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 
Incorporated

(7) Citigroup Global Markets Incorporated
(8) Goldman, Sachs & Co.
(9) George K. Baum & Co.
(10) Barclays Capital
(11) Wells Fargo
(12) JP Morgan

LIBOR-based rates are:

(13) 2003C, 2004D, 2005B1-B2 the lesser of USD-LIBOR or 1- Month 
LIBOR where USD-LIBOR equals the greater of 65.5% USD 1-Month 
LIBOR or 54.8% USD 1-Month LIBOR + 51.2 basis points(

(14) 2004B, 2004F, 2005D, 2005F, 2006F, 2006I, 2006J is 63% USD - 
LIBOR - BBA + 20 basis points

(15) 2006N, 2007B is 68.5% USD 1-Month LIBOR
(16) 2007E is 70.0% USD 1-Month LIBOR
(17)  2008I is USD 1-Month LIBOR
(18) 2008B is 63% USD 1-Month LIBOR + 24 basis points
(19) 2008E, 2008H is 63% USD 1-Month LIBOR + 35 basis points

* 2005 B Swap consists of two separate bond series (2005 B-1 and 
2005 B-2). The notional amount and the fair value on the swap is split 
by the breakdown percentage on the bonds.
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Swap Payments and Associated Debt:  See the following schedule for debt service on bonds and payments on 
associated interest rate swap agreements. Interest calculations were based on rates as of June 30, 2014. As rates 
vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.  

Using these rates, debt service requirements of the Single-Family Program variable-rate debt (hedged and un-
hedged) and net swap payments are as follows: 

Amortization Risk: The risk that the actual redemption of the bonds will differ from the notional principal 
amortization contained in the swap schedule, possibly producing a mismatch at any given time between the 
principal amount of the bonds and the notional amount of the swap.  This may occur because the timing of 
mortgage prepayments, normally used to redeem bonds, cannot be predicted.  In order to mitigate the risk of 
amortization mismatch, OHFA purchased cancellation options to allow for adjustments to the swap notional 
amount in order to better match the amount of associated bonds outstanding. Even with these cancellation 
options, some risk remains that the speed of mortgage prepayments could differ from expectations and result in 
an amortization mismatch.  

Basis Risk:  The risk that arises when interest rates on a hedge and an associated bond are based on different 
indexes. OHFA pays the counterparties a fixed-rate and receives a variable rate, which may be different than the 
variable rate payments to be made on the bonds. If the variable rate received on the swap fails to fully offset 
the variable rate OHFA pays on its bonds, anticipated savings may fail to be realized and OHFA may be exposed 
to higher costs.  For variable swap receipts based upon a taxable index (LIBOR), OHFA assumes the risk of 
reductions in marginal federal tax rates or the elimination of the tax preference for municipal securities.  Those 
tax changes would increase the interest rates on the underlying variable rate debt but would not impact the 
variable rate swap receipt based on the LIBOR index. Certain swap agreements contain alternate rate events, 
including ratings-based events that expose OHFA to added basis risk in the event that the alternate floating rate 
fails to offset the variable cost of the bonds.

Credit Risk: The risk that a counterparty will not fulfill its obligations.  Credit events can trigger certain termination 
provisions or collateral provisions as outlined in the swap documents.  If the negative fair value swaps become 
positive at some point in the future, the counterparty may be obligated to secure the value of the swaps with 
eligible collateral at varying thresholds, depending upon the particular swap and the counterparty credit rating.  
However, if a counterparty suddenly defaulted, prior to being downgraded from a high credit rating, OHFA would 
be exposed to market-access risk, which is the risk that OHFA may not be able to re-enter the hedge market or 
that hedging will become more costly. 
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OHFA has entered into netting arrangements with some of the counterparties whenever there is more than one 
derivative instrument transaction with a counterparty. Under the terms of these arrangements, should one party 
become insolvent or otherwise default on its obligations, close-out provisions permit the non-defaulting party to 
accelerate and terminate all outstanding transactions and net the transactions’ fair values so that a single sum 
will be owed by, or owed to, the non-defaulting party.

The aggregate fair value of hedging derivative instruments at June 30, 2014, is $52,534,730. This represents 
the maximum loss at the reporting date that would be recognized if all the counterparties fail to perform as 
contracted. 

Interest Rate Risk: OHFA is exposed to interest rate risk on the interest rate swaps. On the pay-fixed, received-
variable interest rate swaps, as LIBOR or the SIFMA swap index decreases, OHFA’s net payment on the swap 
increases.

Rollover Risk: The risk that a hedge associated with OHFA’s debt does not extend to the maturity of that debt.  
The following swap agreements do not extend to the maturity dates of the bonds and therefore expose OHFA to 
market-access risk.

Termination Risk: The risk that a swap may be terminated involuntarily prior to its scheduled termination date, 
presenting OHFA with potentially significant unscheduled termination payments to the counterparty or costs to 
replace the counterparty. The swaps are documented under International Swaps and Derivatives Association 
Master Agreement, which include standard termination events.  The schedules to the master agreement 
negotiated by OHFA include additional termination events that allow the swaps to be terminated if either the 
counterparty or OHFA ceases to have a published credit rating above the certain minimum threshold levels.  If any 
of the swap agreements are terminated, OHFA would prospectively pay the variable rates on the associated bonds 
without the benefit of the hedge to synthetic fixed-rate payments under the swap agreements.  The termination of 
the swap agreements could increase OHFA’s total debt service if, at the time of termination, floating rates exceed 
the fixed-rate payable on the swaps. In addition if the fair value of the swaps were negative to OHFA at the time of 
termination, OHFA would be exposed to an unscheduled payment liability whose size could be significant.

Commitments: All of OHFA’s derivative instruments include provisions that obligate OHFA to secure the value of 
the swaps with eligible collateral at varying thresholds, depending upon the particular swap and OHFA’s issuer 
credit rating. If OHFA does not post collateral, the derivative instrument may be terminated by the counterparty. 
As of June 30, 2014, OHFA was not required to post collateral.
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Swap Effectiveness:As of June 30, 2014, all interest rate swaps have been determined to be effective.  
Accordingly, the accumulated changes in fair value of the swaps were reported as deferred outflows of resources 
of $52,534,730, of which $20,769,196 can be attributed to the change in fiscal year 2014. In accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 53, the fair values of the reassigned swaps are not included in the deferred outflows.

NOTE 11 · CURRENT ISSUES AND DEFEASANCE

SINGLE FAMILY BONDS
Defeasance  

In fiscal year 1995, OHFA deposited assets into an irrevocable trust to provide for debt service on all remaining 
1985 Series B bonds. During the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2002, OHFA defeased the 1985 Series A Single-
Family Program bonds by placing the proceeds from the sale of the mortgages in a similar irrevocable trust to 
provide for all future debt service payments on the remaining bonds. The trust account assets and liabilities for 
the defeased bonds are not included in OHFA’s financial statements. As of June 30, 2014, the escrowed assets 
and remaining bonds for each were:  

Subsequent Events 

On September 1, 2014, OHFA expects to exercise approximately $38,000,000 of swap cancellation options.

On September 1, 2014, OHFA expects to exercise the full call option and terminate approximately $24,520,000 
in swaps at no cost to the agency. 

NOTE 12 · PENSION PLANS
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) Pension Benefits

OPERS administers three separate pension plans as described below:

1. The Traditional Pension Plan – a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.

2. The Member-Directed Plan – a defined contribution plan in which the member invests both member and 
employer contributions (employer contributions vest over five years at 20.00% per year).  Under the Member-
Directed Plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of member and (vested) employer 
contributions plus any investment earnings. 

3. The Combined Plan – a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.  Under the Combined 
Plan, OPERS invests employer contributions to provide a formula retirement benefit similar in nature to, but 
less than the Traditional Pension Plan benefit.  Member contributions, the investment of which is self-directed 
by the members, accumulate retirement assets in a manner similar to the Member-Directed Plan.
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OPERS benefits are established under Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. OPERS provides retirement, 
disability, survivor and death benefits and annual cost of living adjustments to members of the Traditional Plan 
and Combined Plans. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not quality for ancillary benefits.  

Employees who are members of OPERS and who have fewer than five years of total service credit as of December 
31, 2002, and new employees hired on or after January 1, 2003, are eligible to select one of the OPERS retirement 
plans, as listed above, in which they wish to participate. Re-employed OPERS retirees are not eligible to select 
a plan.  Participants may change their selection once prior to attaining five years of service credit, once after 
attaining five years of service credit and prior to attaining ten years of service credit, and once after attaining 10 
years of service credit.

Employees who participate in the Traditional or the Combined Plans may retire after 30 years of credited service 
regardless of age (Group A), at age 55 or after with 25 years of credited service (Group A - Reduced), or at age 
60 or after with five years of credited service (Group A - Reduced). Employees may retire at age 52 with 31 years 
of service (Group B), or at any age with 32 years of service (Group B), they may retire at age 55 with 25 years of 
service (Group B – Reduced) or Age 60 with 5 years of service (Group B – Reduced).  Employees may retire at 
age 55 with 32 years of service (Group C), age 57 with 25 years of service (Group C – Reduced) or age 62 with 5 
years of service (Group C – Reduced). Employees retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of service credit 
receive a percentage reduction in benefit amounts. Employees who participate in the Member-Directed Plan may 
retire at age 55. 

The retirement allowance for the Traditional Plan is based on the years of credited service and the final average 
salary, which is the average of the member’s three highest salary years for Groups A and B and the average of the 
member’s five highest salary years for Group C. The annual allowance for employees is determined by multiplying 
the final average salary by 2.20% for each year of Ohio contributing service up to 30 years and by 2.50% for each 
year in excess of 30 years of credited service. Retirement benefits increase three percent annually (Cost of Living 
Adjustment (COLA)) regardless of changes in the Consumer Price Index this is a not a compounding rate and is 
based off your original entitlement amount.

The retirement allowance for the Combined Plan is based on the years of credited service and the final average 
salary, which is the average of the member’s three highest salary years.  The annual allowance for employees is 
determined by multiplying the final average salary by 1.00% for each year of Ohio contributing service up to 30 
years and by 1.25% for all other years in excess of 30 years of credited service.  Retirement benefits increase 
three percent annually regardless of changes in the Consumer Price Index.  Additionally, retirees receive the 
proceeds of their individual retirement plans in a manner similar to retirees in the defined contribution plan, as 
discussed below.

The retirement allowance for the Member-Directed Plan is based entirely on the proceeds of the retirees’ individual 
retirement plans. Retirees may choose to receive either a lump-sum distribution or a monthly annuity for life. 
Participants direct the investment of their accounts by selecting from nine professionally managed investment 
options.

Retirees covered under any one of the three OPERS plan options may also choose to take part of their retirement 
benefit in a Partial Lump-Sum Option Plan (PLOP). Under this option, the amount of the monthly pension benefit 
paid to the retiree is actually reduced to offset the amount received initially under the PLOP. The amount payable 
under the PLOP is limited to a minimum of six months and a maximum of 36 months’ worth of the original 
unreduced monthly pension benefit, and is capped at no less than 50.00% of the retirement benefit amount. 

Employer and member required contributions to OPERS are established under the Ohio Revised Code and are 
based on percentages of covered employees’ gross salaries, which are calculated annually by the retirement 
system’s actuaries.  Contribution rates for calendar years 2012/2013/2014 were consistent across all three 
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plans and were 14.00% for employers and 10.00% for members. OHFA contributions to OPERS for the years 
ending June 30, 2012, 2013, 2014 were $1,283,485, $1,224,587, and $1,166,084 respectively, equal to 
100.00% of the dollar amount billed to OHFA.  

OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of which may be obtained by making a written request to:  
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, visiting https://
www.opers.org/investments/cafr.shtml, or by calling (614) 222-5601 or 1-800-222-7377.  

NOTE 13 · OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Public Employees Retirement Systems

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits and annual cost-of living adjustments to 
members of the Traditional Pension and Combined Plans. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify 
for ancillary benefits.

In order to qualify for post-retirement health care coverage, age and service retirees under the Traditional Plan and 
Combined Plan must have 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability 
benefits recipients and qualified survivor benefits recipients is available. The health care coverage provided by 
OPERS is considered to be an Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 45.

A portion of OHFA’s contribution to OPERS is set aside for the funding of post-retirement health care.  The 
Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer contributions. The 2012/2013/2014 employer 
contribution rates for state employers were 14.00% for all three years.  Effective January 1, 2014, the portion 
of employer contributions allocated to healthcare was raised to 2% for both plans, as recommended by the 
OPERS actuary. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund post-
retirement health care through their contributions to OPERS.  

Health care coverage for each group is listed below:

Group 1 - Members who are retired or are eligible to retire with at least 10 years of service prior to or on 
January 1, 2007, will receive an allowance equal to 100.00% of the cost of health care coverage in 2007.

Group 2 - Members who will be eligible to retire after January 1, 2007 and were hired prior to January 1, 2003, 
will receive an allowance if they have at least 10 years of qualifying service credit at retirement. The allowance 
will increase with each year of service and range from between 50.00% of the cost of health care coverage 
with between 10 and 15 years of service to 100.00% with 30 years of service.

Eligible family members will receive an allowance of between 25.00% and 90.00% of the retiree’s allowance 
depending on the retiree’s years of service.

Group 3 - Members who were hired after January 1, 2003, with no prior service credit will receive an allowance 
if they have at least 10 years of qualifying service credit at retirement. Members with between 10 and 15 years 
of service at retirement will receive an allowance equal to 25.00% of the cost of health care coverage.

The allowance will increase with each year of service and range from between 25.00% with 15 years of service 
to 100.00% with 30 years of service. Eligible family members will receive an allowance of between 12.50% 
and 65.00% of the retiree’s allowance depending on the retiree’s years of service. 

Members of the Member-Directed Plan may access a Retired Medical Account (RMA) upon retirement.  An 
employee’s interest in the medical account for qualifying health care expenses vests on the basis of the length of 
service, with 100.00% vesting attained after five years of service credit.  Employers make no further contributions 

https://www.opers.org/investments/cafr.shtml
https://www.opers.org/investments/cafr.shtml
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to a member’s medical account after retirement, nor do employers have any further obligation to provide post-
employment healthcare benefits.

Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also available to members of the 
Traditional and the Combined Plans. Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority for 
employer contributions. Employees do not fund any portion of health care costs.

 OPERS Board of Trustees Adopt Changes to the Health Care Plan

Changes to the health care plan were adopted by the OPERS Board of Trustees on September 19, 2012, with a 
transition plan commencing January 1, 2014.  With the passage of pension legislation under SB 343 and the 
approved health care changes, OPERS expects to be able to consistently allocate 4 percent of the employer 
contributions toward the health care fund after the end of the transition period.

The portion of OHFA’s contributions to OPERS in fiscal year 2014 that were used to fund post-employment benefits 
was $ 83,258.

NOTE 14 · COMMITMENTS
Under the Single-Family Program, OHFA operates a continuous lending program. As of June 30, 2014, OHFA has 
committed to fund $25,761,375.

OHFA’s initial lease term with Lee Smith Properties ended June 30, 2009 and the Agency subsequently entered 
into two renewal terms commencing on July 1, 2009 and ending on June 30, 2011 and also July 1, 2011 and 
ending on June 30, 2013.  OHFA exercised the option to renew the lease for one six month period beginning July 
1, 2013 and then continue with quarterly renewals until the contract ends on June 30, 2015.  Six month notice 
is required to terminate the lease, and the termination of the lease must be at the end of a quarter.  Therefore, 
OHFA is currently committed to leasing through March 31, 2015.  The rent for the committed period is as follows:
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Designated other commitments of OHFA are:
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The interest rate swap agreements, disclosed in Note 10, and liquidity facilities are general obligations of OHFA to 
the extent the specified resources in the individual series’ trust indenture and any excess revenues of the general 
indenture are not sufficient to make payments. 

OHFA is party to litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.  While the ultimate effect of such actions 
cannot be predicted with certainty, OHFA expects the outcome of these matters will not result in an adverse 
material effect on the financial position of OHFA.

Arlington Housing Partners, Inc vs. Ohio Housing Finance Agency, is a complainant in which the plaintiff 
alleges Breach of Contract for failure to increase Wilbeth Arlington’s rents automatically on an annual basis.  The 
plaintiff also alleges that OHFA reduced the Annual Adjustment Factors by .01 for units that were vacant for the 
contract year.  On July 2, 2010, a decision was filed by Judge Schneider denying the plaintiffs complaint that OHFA 
breached the Housing Assistance Payment Contract. On July 13, 2010 the trial court granted summary judgment 
in favor of OHFA. The Arlington Housing Partners has appealed the decision. The case has been fully briefed and 
argued in the court of appeals. Appeals court found in favor of OHFA on most issues but remanded the case for 
further proceedings to determine if OHFA is liable for unpaid increases in rent for a portion of the 328 units.  
Neither side appealed to the Ohio Supreme Court.  OHFA was reviewing calculation methods to better determine 
the correct amount owed.  A motion to compel OHFA to implead HUD was  filed on August 17, 2012 but was later 
withdrawn.  The Attorney General’s office drafted a settlement demand to HUD.  On December 19, 2012, HUD 
advised OHFA that it will not negotiate at this stage of the litigation. On January 8, 2013, the court ordered OHFA 
to either implead HUD or waive its right to do so by February 7, 2013. On February 7, 2013, OHFA filed a third 
party complaint against HUD. HUD did not remove action to federal court; it sought an answer-deadline extension 
in order to negotiate with Arlington. The court granted HUD’s motion for extension.  HUD answered OHFA’s third-
party complaint on May 14, 2013. A status conference was held on October 8, 2013; all parties agreed to stay the 
case to allow Arlington and HUD to discuss settlement. The agreed stay entry was filed on October 22, 2013. The 
stay may be lifted upon motion by any party. On December 17, 2013, Arlington requested formal mediation with 
the magistrate, who scheduled mediation for February 13, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. All parties submitted mediation 
statements to the magistrate. Mediation was held as scheduled on February 13, 2014, before Magistrate Watters. 
Counsel for Arlington, HUD and OHFA participated. The case did not settle. 

NOTE 15 · NET POSITION
Restricted – bond funds of the Single-Family Program are for future bond retirements or other requirements 
under the indentures.  See Note 14 for designated other commitments of OHFA.

Restricted – federal funds are for future Federal Program Fund expenditures under program guidelines.

NOTE 16 · RISK MANAGEMENT
OHFA’s exposure to various risks of loss events is reduced by participation in the primary government’s programs 
for employee health insurance and other benefits, workers compensation and general insurance. The Ohio 
Department of Administrative Services arranges programs and contracts for employee benefits and health and 
property insurance. See the various Notes to the Financial Statements for policies or arrangements regarding the 
risk management strategies for specific assets or liabilities. OHFA did not make any insurance claims during fiscal 
year 2014. OHFA has developed a disaster recovery plan for business continuity. 
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OHIO HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY
Federal Fund
Statement of Net Position

ASSETS

       Current assets
Restricted Cash
Current portion of restricted investments, at fair value
Accounts receivable
Current portion of loans receivable
Interest receivable on loans

Total current assets

       Non-current assets
Non-current portion of investments, at fair value
Non-current portion of loans receivable

Total non-current assets

Total assets

June 30, 2014

Neighborhood MHA
Stabilization Outreach

Program and Intake Totals

-$                             1,147$                  31,709,319$          
-                               -                             -                               
-                               -                             417,798                  
-                               -                             7,629,861              
-                               -                             3,735                      

-                               1,147                    39,760,713            

-                               -                             -                               
20,134,256            -                             67,000,171            

20,134,256            -                             67,000,171            

20,134,256            1,147                    106,760,884          
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Ohio Housing Finance Agency
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
By Federal Agency and Federal Program
For the Period Ended June 30, 2014

Federal Agency/CFDA Number/Program Title

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Housing - Federal Housing Commissioner
14.195 Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program 275,655$                       

14. UNKNOWN Section 8 Financial Adjustment Factor Program 1,381,437                      

14.239 HOME Investment Partnership Program 4,299,841                      
Pass-through from the Ohio Development Services Agency

14.218 Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement Grants 4,179,554                      
Pass-through from the Ohio Development Services Agency

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 10,136,487$                 

U.S. Department of Treasury

21.000 PL113-6X1350 Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling Program 954,017$                       
21.000PL112-1095X1351 Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling Program 54,000                            

Pass-through from Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation
                                     (dba NeighborWorks America)

21.unknown MHA Outreach and Intake 13,253                            

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 1,021,270$                    

Total Expenditures 11,157,757$                 

UNKNOWN - An official CFDA number is not available for this program.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The information in this schedule adheres to the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations.  Some amounts presented in 
this schedule may vary from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 
The Schedule uses the accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are recognized when earned and expenses 
when incurred.

OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, revised June 26, 2007, 
requires a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule).  OHFA reports this information by both Federal 
Agency and Federal Program

The Schedule must report total disbursements for each federal finance assistance program, as listed in the Catalog 
of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES
Restricted Net Position  

Net position is restricted for allowable federal program expenditures. 

Administrative Fees 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has approved the accounting method OHFA uses 
to report the Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) administrative fee earned in the administration of the Section 8 
program in Ohio.  OHFA records the HAP administrative fee in the General Fund and uses the fee to pay HAP program 
contract administration expenses and other housing related program expenses of the Agency.

OHFA receives funds from Neighborworks for the National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling grant program. OHFA 
records the operational oversight funds as administrative fees earned in the administration of the counseling 
program. 

The Community Development Block (CDBG) Entitlement Grants Program provides OHFA with administrative fees 
used to pay both administrative expenses and environmental review/contractor fees. 

Both the administrative fee and the operation oversight fee are considered a “fee-for-service” under OMB Circular 
A-87 A(2)(b), not a “cost reimbursement” grant, and are available to OHFA for program expenses as outlined in Ohio 
Revised Code 175.02.  For fiscal year 2014, the HAP administrative fee earned is $25,095; the earned operational 
oversight fee for NFMC is $58,818; and the CDBG administrative fee earned is $26,034.

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL MORTGAGE INSURANCE AND 
GUARANTEES
Certain mortgage loans of OHFA are insured by the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or guaranteed by the 
Veterans’ Administration (VA).  As of June 30, 2014, outstanding FHA-insured loans totaled $51,564. 
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NOTE 4 - SUBRECIPIENTS
OHFA provided federal awards to subrecipients for the National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling Program in the 
amount of $949,199. 

NOTE 5 – LOANS RECEIVABLE
OHFA provided one recipient a loan under the CDBG Program totaling $3,450,770. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
Ohio Housing Finance Agency 
57 East Main Street  
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
To the Board of Directors: 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, 
General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio (OHFA), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
OHFA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing, and maintaining 
internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the Comptroller 
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and perform the 
audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures selected 
depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant to OHFA’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the 
extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of OHFA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of their 
significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.   
 
Opinion
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio 
Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Ohio Housing Finance Agency
57 East Main Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

To the Board of Directors:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards, the financial statements of the Single-
Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio Housing Finance 
Agency, Franklin County, Ohio (“OHFA”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise OHFA’s basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated September 24, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As part of our financial statement audit, we considered OHFA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) to determine the audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances to the extent necessary to support 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not to the extent necessary to opine on the effectiveness of OHFA’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we have not opined on it.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct misstatements. 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies resulting in a reasonable 
possibility that internal control will not prevent or detect and timely correct a material misstatement of OHFA’s 
financial statements. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all internal control deficiencies that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider 
material weaknesses. However, unidentified material weaknesses may exist.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether OHFA’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we tested 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement amounts. However, opining 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters we must report under 
Government Auditing Standards.

 

 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
Ohio Housing Finance Agency 
57 East Main Street  
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
To the Board of Directors: 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, 
General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio (OHFA), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
OHFA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing, and maintaining 
internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the Comptroller 
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and perform the 
audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures selected 
depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant to OHFA’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the 
extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of OHFA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of their 
significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.   
 
Opinion
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio 
Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Purpose of this Report

This report only describes the scope of our internal control and compliance testing and our testing results, and does not opine 
on the effectiveness of OHFA’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed under 
Government Auditing Standards in considering OHFA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose.

KENNEDY COTTRELL RICHARDS LLC

Columbus, Ohio
September 24, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
Ohio Housing Finance Agency 
57 East Main Street  
Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 
To the Board of Directors: 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, 
General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, Franklin County, Ohio (OHFA), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
OHFA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing, and maintaining 
internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the Comptroller 
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and perform the 
audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
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depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to 
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extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of OHFA’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit 
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significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.   
 
Opinion
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the Single-Family Mortgage Revenue Program Fund, General Fund, and Federal Program Fund of the Ohio 
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and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Ohio Housing Finance Agency
57 East Main Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

To the Board of Directors:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Ohio Housing Finance Agency’s (“OHFA”) compliance with the applicable requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that could 
directly and materially affect each of OHFA’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The 
Summary of Audit Results in the accompanying schedule of findings identifies OHFA’s major federal programs.

Management’s Responsibility

OHFA’s management is responsible for complying with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on OHFA’s compliance for each of OHFA’s major federal programs based on our audit 
of the applicable compliance requirements referred to above. Our compliance audit followed auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards for financial audits included in the Comptroller 
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. These standards and OMB Circular A-133 require us to plan and 
perform the audit to reasonably assure whether noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements 
referred to above that could directly and materially affect a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about OHFA’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our compliance opinion on OHFA’s major programs. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of OHFA’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Ohio Housing Finance Agency complied, in all material respects with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could directly and materially affect each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

OHFA’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance 
with the applicable compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our compliance audit, 
we considered OHFA’s internal control over compliance with the applicable requirements that could directly and 
materially affect a major federal program, to determine our auditing procedures appropriate for opining on each 
major federal program’s compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with 
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Ohio Housing Finance Agency 
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OMB Circular A-133, but not to the extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of OHFA’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or to timely detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a federal program’s applicable compliance requirement. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a federal program compliance 
requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with federal 
program’s applicable compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over 
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might 
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified.

This report only describes the scope of our internal control compliance tests and the results of this testing based on 
OMB Circular A-133 requirements. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

KENNEDY COTTRELL RICHARDS LLC

Columbus, Ohio
September 24, 2014
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .505

JUNE 30, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unmodified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material internal control 

weaknesses reported at the financial statement 
level (GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other significant deficiencies 
in internal control reported at the financial 
statement level (GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material noncompliance 
at the financial statement level (GAGAS)?

No

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control 
weaknesses reported for major federal 
programs?

No

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other significant deficiencies 
in internal control reported for major federal 
programs?

No

(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unmodified
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under § 

.510(a) of Circular A-133?
No

(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments 
Program – CFDA 14.195

Section 8 Financial Adjustment Factor 
Program – CFDA 14.UNKNOWN

Community Development Block Grant/
Entitlement Grants – CFDA 14.218

(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: > $334,733

Type B: All others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .505

JUNE 30, 2014

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None. 
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